



CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY, FULLERTON™

A RESOLUTION TO AMEND ASI POLICY CONCERNING SOCIAL MEDIA
Sponsor: Brian Rubio

WHEREAS, The Associated Students, Incorporated (ASI) is a 501(c)(3) nonprofit organization that operates as an auxiliary organization of California State University, Fullerton; and

WHEREAS, ASI is governed by ASI Board of Directors, sets policy for the organization, approves all funding allocations to programs and services, and advocates on behalf of student interests on committees and boards; and

WHEREAS, ASI corporate policy provides guidance for how ASI works to achieve the mission and goals of the organization; and

WHEREAS, ASI Policy Concerning Social Media provides guidelines regarding the way ASI student and professional staff use official ASI social media accounts; and


WHEREAS, the Policy Concerning Social Media was reviewed and approved in 2021; and

WHEREAS, a review of the policy identified changes to clarify access to ASI social media accounts, to add language regarding the protection of confidential information, incorporate revisions to the accessibility requirements for social media posts, update the security language, clarify social media content request requirements, and to correct position titles; therefore let it be

RESOLVED, ASI approves the amendments to the Policy Concerning Social Media; and let it be finally

RESOLVED, that this resolution be distributed to the ASI Executive Director and applicable ASI departments for appropriate action.

Adopted by the Board of Directors of the Associated Students Inc., California State University, Fullerton on the third day of December in the year two thousand and twenty-four.


ASI Board Chair (Dec 3, 2024 23:14 PST)

Gavin Ong
Chair, Board of Directors


Noah Alvarez (Dec 7, 2024 09:47 PST)

Noah Alvarez
Secretary, Board of Directors

POLICY CONCERNING SOCIAL MEDIA

PURPOSE

The purpose of the Associated Student Inc. (ASI) Social Media Policy is to provide guidelines regarding the way ASI student and professional staff use official ASI social media accounts. Social media is defined as "online technologies that allow people to share content, opinions, insights, experiences, perspectives, and media itself."¹

Social media has become an essential communication tool, which has been widely adopted by CSU Fullerton students, faculty, staff, and alumni. In an effort to stay connected to these groups, ASI has incorporated social media into its communication strategy. ASI utilizes social media for a variety of purposes, including: creating brand awareness, promoting ASI events and initiatives, obtaining student feedback, providing constituent service, and supporting the university's mission and goals.

The lack of reference to any specific social media tools within this policy does not imply that they are exempt from the rules and regulations set forth.

The ASI social media policy applies to all ASI student leaders, student staff and volunteers, and professional staff who are authorized to create social media content on behalf of ASI. These individuals are expected to adhere to ASI's Social Media Policy, mission statement, and code of conduct.

POLICY STATEMENT	1
WHO SHOULD KNOW THIS POLICY	2
STANDARDS	2
1. ACCESS	2
2. PROTECTION OF CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION	2
3. RULES AND REGULATION	3
4. SOCIAL MEDIA POSTING REQUIREMENTS AND BEST PRACTICES	3
5. ANALYTICS	4
6. SOCIAL MEDIA CONTENT REQUESTS	4

WHO SHOULD KNOW THIS POLICY

- | | |
|--|--|
| <input type="checkbox"/> Budget Area Administrators | <input checked="" type="checkbox"/> Volunteers |
| <input checked="" type="checkbox"/> Management Personnel | <input type="checkbox"/> Grant Recipients |
| <input checked="" type="checkbox"/> Supervisors | <input checked="" type="checkbox"/> Staff |
| <input checked="" type="checkbox"/> Elected/Appointed Officers | <input checked="" type="checkbox"/> Student |

¹ Jim Tobin, *Social Media is a Cocktail Party*. (North Carolina: Ignite Social media, 2008), 13.

STANDARDS

1. ACCESS

Access to ASI social media accounts will be granted and monitored by the Associate Director of Marketing, Communications, & Design and the ~~Associate Executive Director of Organizational Communication and Outreach~~. This oversight includes the ability to add or remove authorized accounts and account users.

The Associate Director of Marketing, Communications, & Design will be responsible for overseeing ~~authorized the Digital and Social Media Manager account users~~ and designating them to develop social media content. All social media content will be approved by the ~~Digital and Social Media Manager~~ ~~Associate Director of Marketing, Communications, & Design~~ prior to public posting. The ~~Chief Communications Officer~~ and the ~~Communications Commissions coordinators~~ ~~Digital and Social Media Manager and their student staff~~ are expected to abide by the rules and regulations set forth in this policy and ~~is~~ ~~are~~ authorized to post content in line with ASI expectations and values.

ASI social media account credentials (e.g., usernames, passwords) will be maintained by the Associate Director of Marketing, Communications, & Design. Authorized account users will be given access to this information with the expectation that the login credentials are confidential and not to be shared with others. No changes to the username or password of any ASI social media account will be made by anyone other than the Associate Director of Marketing, Communications, & Design. Passwords for all social media accounts will be changed at least annually or as needed by the Associate Director of Marketing, Communications, & Design.

The Associate Director of Marketing, Communications, & Design, the Director of Organizational Communications and Outreach, and the Digital and Social Media Manager and the ~~Associate Executive Director~~ reserve the right to delete any content (e.g., tweet, photo, video) that is grammatically incorrect, including typos or incorrect information, is unrelated to ASI programs or services, does not represent ASI's voice, includes profanity, derogatory, or combative language and/or images, or does not otherwise comply with ASI's brand identity and corporate policy.

The creation of new and/or elimination of existing ASI related social media accounts will be handled by the Associate Director of Marketing, Communications, & Design in consultation with the Director of Organizational Communications and Outreach, and the Digital and Social Media Manager ~~Associate Executive Director and Chief Communications Officer~~. Any requests for new ASI-ASI-related social media accounts will be directed to the Associate Director of Marketing, Communications, & Design. The only official ASI social media accounts are @asicsuf and @titanrecreation, @ASICSUF (Facebook), and associated-students-inc-csuf (LinkedIn).

Commented [JF1]: Verify that these are all we have. Are linked and facebook considered "social media" or no?

2. PROTECTION OF CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

ASI personnel (e.g., administrators, staff, students, volunteers, interns) are prohibited from using official ASI or personal social media accounts to disclose confidential, non-public, ASI information. This includes but is not limited to financial and employment information.

In order to respect the privacy and confidentiality of ASI employees, students, and partners, account administrators should obtain consent before mentioning specific individuals or organizations by name in any social media post.

Commented [JF2]: Should there be some mention of using non-staff in posts? We wander around campus and take video. Do we get written consent? Do we have to? Should it be mentioned?

Sharing confidential or proprietary university information of third parties via ASI social media accounts is prohibited.

Commented [CC3R2]: This is from the strat comm website: "Release forms are not required for subjects incidentally photographed during general event photography ." I think we need to re-word this

ASI social media accounts may not be linked to third party services without consulting ASI Information Technology and obtaining approval from the Associate Director of Marketing, Communications, & Design or the Director of Organizational Communications and Outreach. ~~Associate Executive Director~~.

3. RULES AND REGULATIONS

When using ASI social media accounts, account administrators must remember that all content is a

| representation of ASI.
When discussing ASI related information (e.g., business, programs, employees) on personal social media

accounts, account administrators must make it known that the opinions are those of the account holder and do not reflect the views of ASI. This can be accomplished by a simple statement highlighting that the content in the post does not necessarily reflect the views of ASI. When in doubt, account administrators should consult the Associate Director of Marketing, Communications, & Design, [the Director of Organizational Communications and Outreach](#), or the [Digital and Social Media Manager](#) or the ~~Associate Executive Director~~.

When using any ASI social media account, account administrators should refrain from reporting, speculating, or commenting on any university or ASI related topics, policies, operations, or personalities that could be considered sensitive, confidential, or disparaging.

The creation or deletion of ASI related social media accounts/pages is prohibited without the approval of the Associate Director of Marketing, Communications, & Design and [the Director of Organizational Communication and Outreach](#). ~~Associate Executive Director~~.

Account administrators must respect laws governing copyright and copyrighted materials (e.g., photos, designs, text). Appropriate credit to the original author/creator shall be given. When in doubt, the source of the original content should be cited.

Social media graphics for ASI events must be created by the ASI Marketing, [Communications](#) & Design Department. Individuals and groups may apply the ASI logo to their own graphic with the expressed written permission from the Associate Director of Marketing, Communications, & Design. Social media graphic requests are to be submitted to Marketing, [Communications](#) & Design Department (see section 6).

The ability for a third party to post on any ASI page (e.g., Facebook) will be disabled during ASI elections. Individuals running for office and their supporters are prohibited from campaigning through the use of any [ASI-ASI](#)-controlled social media accounts.

4. SOCIAL MEDIA POSTING REQUIREMENTS AND BEST PRACTICES

Careful review should be given before posting to any ASI social media account. Account administrators should consider whether or not the content may be polarizing or controversial. When in doubt, account administrators should consult the Associate Director of Marketing, Communications, & Design or the Director of [Organizational Communication and Outreach](#)

Responses to comments, posts, mentions, and direct messages should be done in a timely manner and with accurate information. Account administrators should consult the Associate Director of Marketing, Communications, & Design [and Digital and Social Media Manager](#) with questions on appropriate responding techniques.

Account administrators must be respectful. Comments that express viewpoints in opposition to the original post should be met with a response when they are relevant to the original post. User comments that are contributed with the intent to illicit a negative response from the original poster and do not add to the discussion should not receive a response. The only comments that should be deleted are those that use profanity or are otherwise disparaging of individuals or groups. When in doubt, account administrators should consult the Associate Director of Marketing, Communications, & Design.

The Marketing, [Communications](#) & Design Department will post social media content requested through the [Social Media Content Request Form](#) as part of marketing efforts for ASI departments

5. ACCESSIBILITY

[All ASI Social Media posts will be accessible to all users, including individuals with disabilities. ASI social media posts will adhere to the most current Web Content Accessibility Guidelines \(WCAG\) and the California State University Accessibility Technology Initiative \(ATI\).](#)

5.6. ANALYTICS

The Marketing, [Communications](#), & Design Department and [the Digital and Social Media Manager](#) ~~Chief~~

Commented [JF4]: Does this still exist?

Commented [CC5R4]: It's something we're looking to change, so the form may change name

~~Communications Officer~~ will track social media analytics for reporting to the Board of Directors as needed.

7. SECURITY

The Marketing, Communications, and Design team will change the passwords to the social media channels owned by ASI every calendar year. All social media channels will also be protected by two-factor authentication overseen by the Digital and Social Media Manager, and KeePass overseen by the ASI Information Technology Department.

6.8. SOCIAL MEDIA CONTENT REQUESTS

Requests for social media content (e.g., text, photo, video) will be managed by the Marketing, Communications, & Design Department upon receipt of a completed Social Media Request Form. Social media requests for student government and commission efforts should be directed to the Digital and Social Media Manager~~Chief Communications Officer and Communications Commission~~.

Commented [JF6]: See note above

ASI will repost or share content exclusively from official campus departments, ASI-affiliated partners, and events that broadly benefit students. Content from individual student organizations will not be reposted to ensure impartiality and avoid the perception of favoritism.

Social media requests will be scheduled using social media scheduling software such as Buffer or similar. The Associate Director of Marketing, Communications, & Design and the Digital and Social Media Manager~~the Chief Communications Officer~~ have access to this software. Marketing, Communications & Design will coordinate with the Digital and Social Media Manager~~Chief Communications Officer and the Communications Commission~~ in regard to social media content scheduling.

DATE APPROVED:	05/09/2017
DATE REVISED:	04/30/2019
	04/20/2021
	XX/XX/2024










A Resolution Amending Policy Concerning Social Media 2024

Final Audit Report

2024-12-07

Created:	2024-12-04
By:	Susan Collins (sucollins@fullerton.edu)
Status:	Signed
Transaction ID:	CBJCHBCAABAASA7nq7leApr1w40ewnGN_Yr5JTAZqpYr

"A Resolution Amending Policy Concerning Social Media 2024" History

-  Document created by Susan Collins (sucollins@fullerton.edu)
2024-12-04 - 1:09:07 AM GMT- IP address: 137.151.113.4
-  Document emailed to ASI Board Chair (asboardchair@fullerton.edu) for signature
2024-12-04 - 1:09:37 AM GMT
-  Email viewed by ASI Board Chair (asboardchair@fullerton.edu)
2024-12-04 - 7:14:34 AM GMT- IP address: 104.47.70.126
-  ASI Board Chair (asboardchair@fullerton.edu) has agreed to the terms of use and to do business electronically with California State University, Fullerton
2024-12-04 - 7:14:43 AM GMT- IP address: 66.215.170.6
-  Document e-signed by ASI Board Chair (asboardchair@fullerton.edu)
Signature Date: 2024-12-04 - 7:14:43 AM GMT - Time Source: server- IP address: 66.215.170.6
-  Document emailed to asboardsecretary@fullerton.edu for signature
2024-12-04 - 7:14:44 AM GMT
-  Email viewed by asboardsecretary@fullerton.edu
2024-12-07 - 5:36:57 PM GMT- IP address: 108.147.175.65
-  Signer asboardsecretary@fullerton.edu entered name at signing as Noah Alvarez
2024-12-07 - 5:47:41 PM GMT- IP address: 107.115.224.107
-  Noah Alvarez (asboardsecretary@fullerton.edu) has agreed to the terms of use and to do business electronically with California State University, Fullerton
2024-12-07 - 5:47:43 PM GMT- IP address: 107.115.224.107



Document e-signed by Noah Alvarez (asboardsecretary@fullerton.edu)

Signature Date: 2024-12-07 - 5:47:43 PM GMT - Time Source: server- IP address: 107.115.224.107



Agreement completed.

2024-12-07 - 5:47:43 PM GMT